
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         April 6, 2020 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – APRIL 6, 2020 

 
Board Room                Regular Meeting               6:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER – Clerk of the Board 
 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
INVOCATION – Chairperson  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

1. Continuity of Government Emergency Ordinance 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors………………A-1 

 
a. Unapproved minutes of March 2, 2020 
b. Unapproved minutes of March 17, 2020          

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...A-2 
 
 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         April 6, 2020 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD 
 
 (Due to Coronavirus (COVID-19) - Citizen Comment Period will be guided by Executive 

Order Fifty-Three Restrictions issued on March 23, 2020 concerning community spread 
and person-to-person interactions will be limited to the Ten (10) Person Only Ban 
though Video/Audio/ Electronic Methods and limited to 3 minutes per person.) 

 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REQUESTS 
  

1. CSA Supplemental Allocation Request ($24,107.30)….…………………………..B-1 
 

2. Lebanon Elementary School Wall Repair Contract .………………………………B-2 
 

3. Russell County Fiscal-Year 2020/2021 Budget Public Hearing………………….B-3 
 

MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... F 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….G 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..H 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………I 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….J 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...K 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….L 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..M   

 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

          Meeting: 4/6/20               6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports 

 
 

1. Continuity of Government Emergency Ordinance 
 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Emergency Ordinance to Allow for the Continuity of Government Operations During the 
Pandemic, including Altering the Process for Conducting Public Meetings; Restricting the 
Use of Public Buildings or Facilities; Providing Additional Powers to the Director of 
Emergency Management to Incur Costs, Waive Procedures, and Take Other Temporary 
Actions; and Suspending Deadlines and Procedures  
 

 WHEREAS, on January 31, 2020, the U.S. Secretary of Health and Human Services 
declared a public health emergency in response to the spread of the novel coronavirus (COVID-
19); and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 12, 2020, the Governor, in Executive Order Fifty-One, declared a 
state of emergency in the Commonwealth of Virginia, acknowledging the spread of COVID-19 as 
a disaster as defined in Virginia Code § 44-146.16; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Executive Order Fifty-One authorized local governments to render 
appropriate assistance and to alleviate conditions, as appropriate, to prepare for and mitigate the 
effects of the virus; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States found and declared the 
outbreak of COVID-19 to constitute a national emergency, beginning March 1, 2020; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on March 17 and 23, the Governor requested and then directed Virginians to 
avoid non-essential gatherings of more than 10 people; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Russell County Board of Supervisors held a special called meeting on 
March 17, 2020 Board determined that COVID-19 constituted a “disaster” as contemplated in 
section 15.2-1413 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended and pursuant to Virginia Code § 
44-146.21, declared a local state of emergency in Russell County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has determined that COVID-19 constitutes a 
communicable disease of public health threat which has caused a disaster as those terms are 
defined in Virginia Code § 44-146.16; and  
 
 WHEREAS, while the Board of Supervisors values transparency in government and 
public engagement, it also finds that emergency measures are necessary to mitigate the spread of 
COVID-19 and to protect the health, safety, and welfare of residents and employees, while still 
providing for government operations to continue during this state of emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Virginia Code § 15.2-1413 provides that the Board of Supervisors, 
notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, may adopt an ordinance to assure the continuity of 
government operations during this disaster and for up to six months; and. 
 
 WHEREAS, Virginia Code § 44-146.21 further provides that a local director of 
emergency management or any member of a governing body in his absence may upon the 
declaration of a local emergency proceed without regard to time-consuming procedures and 
formalities prescribed by law, except for mandatory constitutional requirements; and  



 
 WHEREAS, Virginia Code § 15.2-1200 provides the county with authority to adopt 
necessary regulations to prevent the spread of contagious diseases among its residents; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors also has the inherent authority to vary the county’s 
policies, procedures, and practices to assure the continuity of government operations; and 
 

WHEREAS, government operations includes the work of the Board of Supervisors and 
other local public bodies, and the personnel who work for or on behalf of local public bodies; and 

 
WHEREAS, Virginia Code § 2.2-3708.2(A)(3) allows, under certain procedural 

requirements including public notice and access, that members of the Board of Supervisors may 
convene solely by electronic mean “to address the emergency;” And 

 
WHEREAS, the open public meeting requirements of the Virginia Freedom of 

Information Act (“FOIA”) are limited only by a properly claimed exemption provided under that 
Act or “any other statute;” and 

 
WHEREAS, the Attorney General of Virginia issued an opinion dated March 20, 2020 

stating that localities have the authority during disasters to adopt ordinances to ensure the 
continuity of the government; and 

 
WHEREAS, this emergency ordinance in response to the disaster caused by the COVID-

19 pandemic promotes the public health, safety, and welfare, and its adoption is consistent with 
the law of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the Virginia Constitution and the United States 
Constitution. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that this uncodified ordinance is hereby 
enacted as follows: 
 
An Emergency Ordinance Allowing for the Continuity of Government Operations During 
the Pandemic 
 
Sec. 1.  Purpose; Effective Date; Expiration 
 
 This ordinance allows for variances from state laws and county ordinances in order to 
protect the health, safety, and welfare of residents and employees from the spread of COVID-19 
while still providing for government operations to continue during this state of emergency. 
 

The operation of government includes management of all county facilities, management of 
the school system, and the work of all local boards, including the Board of Supervisors, the Russell 
County School Board, the Russell County Industrial Development Authority, the Russell County 
Public Service Authority, the Russell County Department of Social Services, and any other local 
or regional board, commission, committee, or authority created by the board of supervisors or to 
which the board of supervisors appoints or recommends for appointment all or a portion of its 
members (collectively “Public Bodies” and individually “Public Body”), including employees 



who work for or on behalf of any Public Body.  Accordingly, the provisions of this emergency 
ordinance applies to all such “Public Bodies”. 
 

At this time, public health experts recommend against assembling groups of people in 
confined spaces. Accordingly, this ordinance contains modifications for public meetings which 
should be followed while it is deemed unwise or unsafe to gather in one location a quorum for any 
Public Bodies, or to invite members of the public to physically gather together for public meetings.   

 
 Moreover, the spread of COVID-19 may make it impossible or impractical for government 
operations to meet all normally imposed deadlines, regulations, and time frames, or to comport, in 
some instances, with lengthy procedures and processes such as procurement or employment 
processes.  
 
 This emergency ordinance is effective immediately and will remain in effect for 60 days 
unless amended, rescinded, or readopted in conformity with the notice provisions of Virginia Code 
§ 15.2-1427; however, in no event will the ordinance be effective for more than six months from 
the effective date of this ordinance. At the end of the six months a state of emergency still exists 
then this ordinance may be renewed the same way it was originally enacted. Upon repeal or 
expiration of this ordinance, normal government operations will resume.  
 
Sec. 2.  Public Meetings and Public Hearings 
 
A. Any regularly scheduled or regular meeting of any Public Body may be canceled by the 
chair if there is no essential business that needs to occur or if conditions otherwise make it 
impractical to meet. Notice of the cancellation must be provided to the Public Body members and 
the public as soon as practicable.   
 
B. In the alternative, any regularly scheduled or regular meeting of any Public Body may  
be held by solely electronic or telephonic means without a quorum of members physically present 
and without members of the public physically present, provided the following occurs: 
 
 1)  Any such electronic meeting of the Public Entities shall be open to electronic 
participation by the public and closed to in-person participation by the public. The meeting is 
accessible to the public through live audio or video on the County’s or Public Body’s website, a 
dial-in telephone number, or a social media platform. 
 
 2) The agenda and public notice for the meeting must: 

a) include a statement that the meeting is being held using electronic means under this 
ordinance; 

b) contain specific information about how members of the public can access the 
meeting; and  

c) if there are any public hearing or public comment items, specifically identify how 
members of the public can provide comment, including one or more of the 
following: by e-mail, in writing, by telephone, through a social media platform, or 
via other electronic means. 
 



 
 3) The agenda is posted on the County’s or Public Body’s website at least three days prior 
to the meeting.  Other materials associated with the meeting, if any, must be made available to the 
public at the same time they are provided to the Public Body members. 
 
 4) For public hearings and any items for which public comment is permitted, the following 
rules apply: 

a) Normal rules of order apply with respect to requiring the name and home address 
of the commenter, that comments relate to the hearing or comment topic, that 
appropriate limits on the number of comments per person per item apply, and that 
comments be of reasonable length. 

b) Public Bodies may allow public comments to be submitted via phone call, e-mail, 
or in writing, up until a reasonable time before the start of the meeting so long as 
those comments are provided to the Public Body members prior to any decision on 
an item.  

c) If available, members of the public may provide comments through leaving a 
voicemail on a dedicated phone number up until a reasonable time before the start 
of the meeting so long as those comments are then provided to the Public Body 
members prior to any decision on an item. 

d) If available, members of the public may provide comments through telephonic or 
interactive electronic means (call-in meeting access, social media platform) during 
the meeting so long as those comments are received by or provided to the Public 
Body members prior to any decision on an item. 

e) The Public Body may choose to receive additional comments through any means 
for a period of time after the public hearing or public meeting, so long as it 
announces and publicizes that opportunity and those comments are provided to the 
Public Body members prior to any decision on an item.  

f) All public comments must be made a part of the record of the Public Body either by 
being summarized in or included with the meeting minutes. 
 

 5) Any votes taken during the meeting must be taken by roll call, individually recording 
each member’s name and vote. 
 
 6) The minutes of any meeting under this ordinance must conform to the requirements of 
law, including identifying the forms of electronic communication used, the members participating 
and the means by which they participated, the opportunities for public access or participation, a 
summary of the public comments, if any, and the actions taken at the meeting. The Public Entities 
may approve minutes of an electronic meeting at a subsequent electronic meeting and shall later 
approve all such minutes at a regular or special meeting after the emergency and disaster has ended. 
 
C. Public Bodies may hold special meetings consistent with the provisions in (B) except that 
notice of the special meeting need only be provided at least three working days prior to the meeting, 
and the agenda and associated materials, if any, need to be made available to the public at the same 
time as they are made available to the Public Body members. 
 
 



 
D. Public Bodies may hold emergency meetings consistent with Virginia Code § 2.2-3708. 
 
E. Any item on an agenda for a regularly scheduled, regular, special, or emergency meeting 
held hereunder may be continued to a later date or time for the purpose of reviewing and 
considering comments from the public. 
 
F. Non-emergency public hearings and action items of Public Bodies may be postponed to a 
date certain provided that public notice is given so that the public are aware of how and when to 
present their views. 
 
G. Nothing in this Emergency Ordinance shall prohibit Public Bodies from holding in-
person public meetings provided that public health and safety measures as well as social 
distancing are taken into consideration. 
 
Sec. 3.  Public Buildings, Facilities, Real Property and Events 
 

The director of emergency management is empowered to restrict members of the public 
from entering or congregating around county-owned buildings, facilities, and real property as is 
reasonably necessary to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of the public or county staff. 
Moreover, the director of emergency management may cancel, postpone, or reschedule any events 
scheduled for any county-owned building, facility or property as necessary to ensure the health, 
safety, and welfare of the public or county staff.  

 
Sec. 4.  Additional powers of director of emergency management 
 
A. Funding and Contracts. To the extent of unobligated funds available in excess of 
appropriations in the approved budget, the director of emergency management may enter into 
contracts and incur obligations necessary to protect the health and safety of persons and property, 
and to provide emergency assistance to persons affected by this disaster. 

 
B. Procedures. The director of emergency management may proceed without regard to time-
consuming procedures and formalities prescribed by law (except mandatory constitutional 
requirements) pertaining to the performance of public work, entering into contracts, incurring 
obligations, employing workers, renting equipment, purchasing supplies and materials, and other 
expenditures of public funds. 

 
C. Other Temporary Actions. The director of emergency management may temporarily take 
any of the following actions: waive or reduce fees imposed by county ordinance; waive 
enforcement, in whole or in part, of any county ordinance; and modify, limit, waive, suspend, or 
amend any county program, service, function, process, or procedure. The director must apply the 
action uniformly for similar situations and not on a case-by-case basis. The director’s actions will 
only be effective until the next regular meeting of the board of supervisors. The board of 
supervisors may ratify and extend the time for which the director’s action remains in effect. 
 
 
 



 
Sec. 5.  Suspension of Deadlines, Time Frames, and Procedures 
 

County personnel are encouraged to take action as is practical and appropriate to meet 
deadlines or time frames established under state law or county ordinances, however, 
notwithstanding any provision of law, regulation, or policy to the contrary, any deadlines requiring 
action by the county, any Public Body, or county employees are suspended. Time frames for 
review or expedited reviews are also suspended. Failure to meet any deadline or time frame will 
not constitute a default, violation, approval, ratification, or recommendation. Any policies or 
procedures inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby suspended. 
 
Sec. 6 Adoption by Incorporated Towns within the Boundaries of Russell County 

 
Each incorporated town within the boundaries of Russell County are encouraged, 

authorized and/or directed to declare its own state of local emergency and disaster or incorporate 
by reference the County’s local state of emergency and disaster and to adopt an ordinance for the 
continuity of town government.  
 
Sec. 7 Validity and Duration of Ordinance and Resumption of Normal Governmental 
Authority 
 

The provisions herein are presumptively valid, however in the event that any provision of 
this ordinance is declared to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction all remaining 
provisions shall not be invalidated and remain in full force and effect. The provisions of this 
Emergency Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect for a period of 60 days, unless amended, 
rescinded or readopted by the Russell County Board of Supervisors in conformity with the notice 
provisions set forth in Virginia Code §15.2-1427 but in no event shall such ordinance be effective 
for more than 6 months after the conclusion of the disaster.  Upon rescission by the Russell 
County Board of Supervisors or automatic expiration as described herein, this emergency 
ordinance shall terminate and normal practices and procedures of government shall resume. 
  
2. This ordinance shall be effective upon adoption. 
 

ADOPTED by the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 

        APPROVED 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Rebecca Dye 
        Chairperson    
  
 
 
 
                    



ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Lonzo Lester 
County Administrator 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
M. Katherine Patton 
County Attorney 
 
 

 



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

           Meeting: 4/6/20       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• March 2, 2020 Board Minutes 
• March 17, 2020 Board Minutes 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



`March 02, 2020 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, March 02, 
2020 beginning at 5:00 pm with Executive (closed) Session followed by the regular meeting at 6:00 pm 
at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 
Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
None 
 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (closed) Session pursuant to Section 2.2-3712(5) of the Code of Virginia to discuss 
legal matters pursuant to 2.2-3712(A), (3), (5), (7) and (8). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 

CERTIFICATION OF EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 
 
Invocation by Rick Gibson, Copper Ridge Baptist Church followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Presentations 
 
Steve Clear, Southwest Virginia Regional Jail Authority asked that the Board approve a new service 
agreement for the Southwest Virginia Regional Jail Authority. 
 

APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION FROM THE SWVRJA TO ENTER INTO A NEW SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Resolution from the Southwest Virginia Regional Jail Authority to enter into a new service 
agreement. 
 



The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

Acknowledgement 

The Board of Supervisors recognized former Supervisor At-Large Harry Ferguson for his service. 

 

Presentations, continued: 

Jess Powers, Emergency Management Coordinator presented a power point explaining a local 
emergency declaration in the County. 

APPROVAL OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY DECLARATION DUE TO FLOODING 

Supervisor Carl Rhea read the Local Emergency Declaration resolution. 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
a approve a Local Emergency Declaration in Russell County due to the flooding that occurred during 
February 06-24, 2020. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
New Business 

APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 03, 2020 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the February 03, 2020 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 19, 2020 MINUTES 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors the 
February 19, 2020 and dispense with the reading thereof. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

 
 
 
 



APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $771,531.81 including reoccurring and payroll 
withholdings. 
 
The vote was; 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

TIM LOVELACE APPOINTED TO THE CPRWMA 
 
Carl Rhea nominated David Eaton 
Lou Wallace nominated Tim Lovelace 
 
Tim Lovelace – (4) four votes:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Carl Rhea – (3) three votes:  Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and David Eaton 
 
Tim Lovelace was appointed to the Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority to run 
concurrent with his term on the Board of Supervisors. 
 

DAVID EATON APPOINTED TO THE CUMBERLAND MOUNTAIN COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD 
 
Lou Wallace nominated David Eaton 
 
David Eaton was appointed to the Cumberland Mountain Community Services Board by acclamation to 
fill the unexpired term of Steve Givens, said term ending December 31, 2021.                  . 
 

APPROVAL TO TABLE THE RC TOURISM ADVISORY COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
table the Russell County Tourism Advisory Committee appointment until the April 06, 2020 meeting. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

Citizens Comment 
 
The Chair opened citizens comment period. 
 
Kelly McBride Delph, RCPL invited the Board to attend the water monitoring training on Thursday 
March 12, 2020 at the library. 
 
Randy and Wanda Burke, Lebanon commented that they do a local drug and alcohol prevention 
ministry (DASH).  They will be hosting events in several schools and a community event on April 16, 
2020.  Mark Marrow will be the speaker.  They asked that the Board consider a donation. 

 



 
APPROVAL TO DONATE $500.00 FOR THE MARK MARROW EVENT IN APRIL 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
make a donation of $500.00 to help with the Mark Marrow event in April. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

Jim Lyttle, Castlewood commented that Jess Powers, Oris Christian and Carl Rhea did a fantastic job 
managing all the flooding issues.  He stated that agricultural losses were not mentioned and found this 
very unfortunate. 
 
The Chair closed citizens comment period. 
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 

APPROVAL OF THE CPRWMA MANPOWER AGREEMENT 
 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
table the Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Manpower Agreement.   
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 

 
APPROVAL OF “PROJECT GLOW” PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the “Project Glow” Participation Agreement. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
The County Attorney advised that the Personnel Policy be approved at the April Board meeting. 
 
APPROVAL TO  ALLOW THE SCHOOL BOARD TO ACCEPT BIDS ON THE REMOVAL OF A STRUCTURE ON 

RUSSELL COUNTY PROPERTY IN HONAKER 
  
Motion made by David Eaton, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
allow the Russell County School Board to accept bids on property in Honaker to remove a structure 
before the property is transferred to them. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 



 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 
APPROVAL OF AN AMERICAN RED CROSS PROCLAMATION FOR THE MONTH OF MARCH 2020 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve an American Red Cross Proclamation Resolution for the month of March 2020. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A CPPD HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN UPDATE 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Cumberland Plateau Planning District Hazard Mitigation Plan Update. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A DHCD BELFAST WATER PROJECT ADMINISTRATIVE AGREEMENT (PHASE 2) 
 
Motion made by Oris Christian, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Department of Housing and Community Development Belfast Water Project Administrative 
Agreement (Phase 2) and give the Chair authorization to execute the documents. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye, David Eaton and Carl Rhea 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN RUSSELL COUNTY AND THE RUSSELL COUNTY PSA 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a service agreement between the Russell County Board of Supervisors and The Russell County 
Public Service Authority. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A DHCD BLOCK GRANT RESOLUTION IN THE AMOUNT OF $630,000 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Department of Housing and Community Development Block Grant resolution in the amount 
of $630,000 for the Belfast Water Project Phase II and authorize the Chair to execute the documents. 
 
The vote was: 



Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

 

APPROVAL TO APPROPRIATE $500 TO THE HONAKER REDBUD FESTIVAL 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appropriate $500 to the Honaker Redbud Festival. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF TRAVEL REQUESTS FROM THE SOLID WASTE DEPT. AND GENERAL DISTRICT COURT 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve travel requests from the Solid Waste Department and General District Court. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE THE HONAKER PROPERTY TRANSFER FOR PUBLIC HEARING 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the advertisement of a public hearing on the Honaker Property Transfer to the Russell County 
School Board. 
 
 The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 

Motion made by Carl Rhea, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye, Steve Breeding and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None  

  

 
 
__________________________                                                      _________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                               Chairperson 



March 17, 2020 

A special called meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Tuesday, March 17, 
2020 at 5:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 
 
Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
 
Absent: 
None 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
New Business 
 

APPROVAL OF A CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) LOCAL EMERGENCY DECLARATION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Russell County Coronavirus  (COVIC-19) Local Emergency Declaration. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 



The vote was; 
Aye:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
____________________________                                                         _______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                      Chairperson 
 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

       Meeting: 4/6/20      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s March 2020 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s March 2020 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s March 2020 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• March 2020 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





























 

Board of Supervisors Action Item B-1 – B-2 
   137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 

Lebanon, VA 24266 

                   Meeting: 4/6/20         6:00 PM 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for April 2020: 

 
 
REQUESTS 

  
1. CSA Supplemental Allocation Request ($24,107.30)….…………………………..B-1 

 
2. Lebanon Elementary School Wall Repair Contract .………………………………B-2 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
• Various 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/










 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

 
DESIGN-BUILD CONSTRUCTION                               

LEBANON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL  
WALL REPAIR PROJECT 

 
Russell County, Virginia will accept proposals until 
Friday, March 6, 2020 at 3:00 p.m., from qualified firms 
(“Offerors”) to provide Design-Build Construction for all 
phases of Design and Construction of the Lebanon 
Elementary School Wall (West) Repair Project.   
 
Russell County intends to select one firm to provide 
these design and construction services using the 
competitive negotiation procedure for professional 
services as defined in Section 2.2-4379 of the Virginia 
Public Procurement Act. 

 
Full copies of the Request for Proposals (RFP) may be 
requested by contacting Mr. Lonzo Lester, County 
Administrator, at (276) 889-8000, or by email at  
lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us or the County’s website 
at http://www.russellcountyva.us/155/Procurement. 

 

mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
http://www.russellcountyva.us/155/Procurement


 
 
 
 

1 
 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL VIRGINIA 
 

 
 

Request for Proposal for 
Design-Build Services 

 
Lebanon Elementary School 

Wall Repair Project 
 
Issue Date:  2/19/2020 
 
Due Date: 3/6/2020 
 
Project Name:  Lebanon Elementary School’s Wall (West) Repair 
 
Project Number:  RFP 005-2020 
 
Project Location:  Lebanon Elementary School, 56 George Ben Whited Drive, Lebanon, VA 24266 
 
Owner/Agency Name:  Russell County School Board/Russell County Board of Supervisors  
 
Owner/Agency Contact Information:  276-889-8000 / 276-880-4396    
 
All questions shall be submitted in writing by FAX or e-mail, no later than March 3, 2020 to:                                                 
(E-mail:  Lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us; Fax #:  276-889-8011). 
 
All questions and answers will be provided in writing to all proposers.  Any instructions not provided in 
writing are not to be considered as part of the RFP. 
     
Sealed proposals for furnishing the services described herein will be received until 3 p.m. EST on                                               
3/6/2020.  Proposal shall reach the address below by the deadline stated. 
 
Deliver Proposals To:    County Administrator    
    137 Highland Drive    
    P.O. Box 1208     
    Lebanon, VA 24266    
 
There will be a Mandatory Site Visit Meeting on February 27, 2020  at 10 A.M.  The pre-proposal site visit 
meeting shall be held at the project site located at: 
      Lebanon Elementary School     
      56 George Ben Whited Drive     
      Lebanon, VA 24266      
              
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

2 
 

I. PURPOSE 
 

Russell County Board of Supervisors is seeking proposals to retain the services of a Design-Build 
Contractor for the construction of the Lebanon Elementary School’s Wall (West) Repair Project.  The 
purpose of the Request for Proposal (RFP) is to solicit proposals for selecting a Design-Build Contractor 
for the services hereinafter described from the Offerors.  This RFP sets forth the minimum performance 
criteria. 

 
II. BACKGROUND. 

 
The Lebanon Elementary School is two story building with un-reinforced masonry walls.  The first floor 
is slab on grade, with a pipe trench around the perimeter of the building.  The second floor and attic floor 
are concrete slabs supported by open web steel joists.  The roof is wood framed.  The floor and roof 
framing bear on the exterior and corridor masonry walls.  The school’s back (West) exterior wall is 
bowed in the area of classrooms 106, 107, 206, 207, and the library.  Measurements indicate the exterior 
wall has moved up to 2 inches relative to the interior partitions.   
 

III. INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS 
 
The Work is for Design-Build services.  The proposer shall review all available project documents as 
listed in this Request for Proposal, visit and become familiar with the project site, identify any 
requirements of the locality (business licenses or other fees necessary to conduct business in the County).   

 
 The RFP Response shall include the following components and be organized as follows: 
 

A. Completed Form of Proposal for Design-Build Services. 
 
This will include the Technical Proposal, Cost Proposal, and the RFP. 

 
B. Narrative of Project Approach 

 
1. The Proposal must include a fully detailed and developed approach to be undertaken by the 

Design-Build Contractor for accomplishing the Scope of Work of the Project.  This written 
approach should document how the Design-Build Contractor will execute the demands of the 
Project by describing the processes, procedures, and strategies utilized.  This approach shall 
outline the philosophy and methodology for: 
 
a. Interfacing with the Architect/Engineer. 
b. Interfacing with all Subcontractors. 
c. Interfacing with all outside entities on the Project. 
d. Maintaining the Project’s budget. 
e. Maintaining the Project's schedule. 
f. Meeting the Project's quality objectives. 

 
2. The written approach must address the Contractor’s plans for minimizing disruptions to the 

school operations, traffic patterns, and customary activities in the immediate vicinity of the 
Project site. 

 
3. The written approach must address the Contractor's plan for the utilization of available staging 

area.  Include in the response to this specific item the team's plan for the delivery of materials and 
equipment to the Project site and how such items will be stored or coordinated prior to their need 
for erection or placement into their permanent positions. 

 
4. The written approach must address the Proposer’s strategies for obtaining qualified, complete 

subcontractor pricing including targeted small business participation. 



 
 
 
 

3 
 

C. Other Relevant Information 
 

 Proposals may include any other documentation deemed appropriate by the Proposer to convey to the 
Design-Build Evaluation knowledge regarding the Offeror's organization. 

  
IV. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION 
 

1. Three (3) copies of the Proposal (one marked original and two copies of the original) are to be submitted 
to the attention of the County Administrator at the address listed above. 

 
2. Proposals are to be submitted not later than the due date and time listed on the first page of this document.  

Proposals received after the above time and date will be rejected and returned to the sender. 
 

3. Proposals are to be mailed via United States Postal Service, delivered via express delivery services or 
delivered by a representative of the Offeror to the address above. 

 
4. Proposals received by the Owner will remain in the possession of Owner and will not be returned to the 

Offerors. 
 

5. The Owner recognizes the possible existence of confidentiality agreements between an Offeror and 
previous clients and fully respects such agreements.  Any information requested by this RFP that is 
considered to be confidential between the Offeror and a previous client shall be marked proprietary by the 
Offeror. 

 
6. The Owner’s Project personnel reserve the right to visit the office(s) of an Offeror to verify any claim(s) 

made by an Offeror regarding staff, facilities, capabilities, qualifications and any other reasonable 
concerns that may arise on the part of the Owner.  In such an event, the Offeror must make every 
reasonable attempt to clarify any concerns expressed by the Owner’s personnel at that time. 

 
7. The Owner will not be responsible for any costs incurred by an Offeror in the preparation and submittal of 

a Proposal. 
 

8. In the event the Offeror discovers an error in its Proposal after it has been submitted, attention may be 
drawn to the error in writing and an amendment to the Proposal submitted to the Owner, provided the 
amendment has been received by the Owner on or before the date and time fixed for receipt of Proposals, 
the amendment will be accepted and shall be treated with equal force as the balance of the originally 
submitted Proposal. If an error is discovered after the time and date of receipt of the RFP, the Offeror may 
withdraw, without penalty, from consideration, but the error correction will not be accepted by the 
Owner. 

 
V. PROPOSALS EVALUATION PROCESS 
 

1. Proposals will be opened under the supervision of the County Administrator.  The opening of the 
Proposals will not be conducted in public. 

 
2. Upon receipt of the Proposals from the Offerors, proposals will be distributed to the respective 

participants on the Project’s Design-Build Evaluation. 
 

3. The Design-Build Evaluation will thoroughly review the Proposals and rank them according to the criteria 
contained herein and will invite those organizations whose Proposals most closely align with the 
requirements of the RFP to subsequent face-to-face interviews with the committee.  It is anticipated that 
these will take place within ten (10) days of receipt of the Proposals.  It is anticipated that not all of the 
Offerors submitting written Proposals will be interviewed. 

 
 



 
 
 
 

4 
 

4. The Design-Build Proposals will be evaluated and ranked and select the leading candidates among the 
interviewed Design-Build Contractor.  After the interviews and prior to negotiations, the County may at 
its sole discretion provide the leading candidates the opportunity to submit to the County a sealed 
modification to the Cost Proposal.  Selection shall be made of two or more contractor candidates deemed 
to be fully qualified and best suited among those submitting proposals on the basis of the evaluation 
factors included in the Request for Proposals, including contract price, if so, stated in the Request for 
Proposals.  Negotiations shall be conducted with the candidate/candidates selected.  Price shall be 
considered but will not be the sole determining factor.  The County may cancel this Request for Proposals 
or reject proposals at any time prior to an award.  Should the County determine at its sole discretion that 
only one candidate is fully qualified, or that one candidate is clearly more highly qualified than the others 
under consideration, a contract may be negotiated and awarded to that candidate.  The award document 
will be a contract incorporating by reference all the requirements, terms, and conditions of the solicitation 
and the Contractor's proposal as negotiated.  

 
VI. EVALUATION CRITERIA 

 
The Design-Build evaluation criteria for proposals include the following: 

 
ADJUST TECHNICAL PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA TO REFLECT PRIORITIES OF EVALUATION.) 

 
A. Evaluation of Cost Proposal 

1. Total proposed construction cost shall be within the funds available for construction. 
2. Total proposed cost ranked in order of lowest to highest. 

 
B. Evaluation of Technical Proposal 

1. Responsiveness of the aesthetics of the proposed design to the County. 
2. Responsiveness of the functional layout of the proposed design to the County. 

 
C. Evaluation of Interview 

 
VII. BASIS OF AWARD 

(COUNTY SHALL SELECT EITHER “BASIS OF AWARD–METHOD #1”, OR “BASIS OF AWARD–METHOD #2” 
AND REMOVE THE OTHER FROM THE RFP.) 
 
Basis of Award - Method #1 (Cost Basis): 

 
The County reviews Technical Proposals for compliance with the requirements of the RFP and all 
clarifications issued.  Assuming that the required changes were made, all proposals, though they may 
have different features, would now meet the requirements of the RFP.  All proposals are considered to be 
equally acceptable, with respect to the RFP criteria. 

 
The County publicly opens the Cost Proposals from each proposer, along with any cost modifications 
submitted.  Since all proposals meet the RFP requirements, the contract is awarded based on the lowest 
price. 

 
Basis of Award - Method #2 (Cost + Technical Basis): 

 
If the selection of the Design-Build Contractor includes a technical scoring component in addition to the 
low-cost scoring component, the agency shall use the following method to award: 

 
a. The County shall review the Technical Proposals for compliance with the requirements of the RFP 

(and clarifications issued) ranking them in order of preference from 1 to 5. (1 being the best) 

 



 
 
 
 

5 
 

b. Points shall be credited to technical proposals based upon a 100-point baseline as follows: 
 

Rank #1 = 100 points 
Rank #2 =   80 points 
Rank #3 =   60 points 
Rank #4 =   40 points 
Rank #5 =   20 points 

 
If there are fewer than five proposals, the highest rankings are used. (e.g.: 1=100, 2=80, 3=60) 

c. After the technical proposals have been evaluated, the County shall open the cost proposal from each 
proposer along with cost modifications submitted.  The cost proposals shall be scored based upon a 
100-point baseline.   

d. The County shall sum the cost points and technical points to obtain a total score for each proposal. 
e. The scores shall be summed for each proposal. 
f. The highest score will determine who will be awarded the contract.  In the event of a tie, the project 

shall be awarded to the lowest price of the proposals included in the tie. 
 
VIII. ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Attachment “A” – Form of Proposal for Design-Build Services  



 
 
 
 

6 
 

 
COUNTY OF RUSSELL VIRGINIA 

 

 
 

Form of Proposal for Design-Build Services 
 
 
 
 Date:  ________________________, 20      . 
 
Project:   Lebanon Elementary School’s Wall (West) Repair 
 
 
 

 
To:  County Administrator 
  County of Russell, Virginia  
  137 Highland Drive  
  P.O. Box 1208 
  Lebanon, VA 24266 
 
  
From:      (Insert Name and address of Design-Build Contractor) 
 
 
 
 
 
In compliance with and subject to your Request for Proposal and the documents therein specified, all of which are 
incorporated herein by reference, the undersigned proposes to furnish all labor, equipment, and materials and 
perform all work necessary for construction of this Project as well as the associated insurances, bonds, and other 
items listed below in accordance with the Request for Proposal dated     , the 
Amendments noted below, and the staffing and technical provisions stated above, for the consideration of the 
following amount: 
 
Total Cost Proposal Amount: ________________________________________DOLLARS ($  ) 
 
In compliance with the Request for Proposal and all provisions and appendices attached and referenced therein, 
and subject to all the terms and conditions set forth herein, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the 
services described in the attached Request for Proposals.  It is understood that this proposal may be modified, by 
mutual agreement in subsequent negotiations. 
 
If notice of acceptance of this Cost Proposal is given to the undersigned within 30 days after the date of opening 
of bids, or any time thereafter before this bid is withdrawn, the undersigned will execute and deliver a contract in 
the prescribed form within 10 days after the contract has been presented to him for signature.  The required 
payment and performance bonds, on the forms prescribed, shall be delivered to the Owner along with the signed 
Contract. 



 
 
 
 

7 
 

 
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986: The undersigned certifies that it does not and shall not during the 
performance of the Contract for this project violate the provisions of the Federal Immigration Reform and Control 
Act of 1986, which prohibits employment of illegal aliens, or knowingly employ an unauthorized alien as defined 
in the Federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986. 
 
DISQUALIFICATION OF CONTRACTORS: By signing this proposal, the undersigned certifies that this 
Contractor or any officer, director, partner or owner is not currently barred from bidding on contracts by any 
Agency of the Commonwealth of Virginia, or any public body or agency of another state, or any agency of the 
federal government, nor is this Bidder a subsidiary or affiliate of any firm/corporation that is currently barred 
from bidding on contracts by any of the same.  We have attached an explanation of any previous disbarment(s) 
and copies of notice(s) of reinstatement(s). 
 
I certify that the firm name given below is the true and complete name of the Contractor and that the proposer is 
legally qualified and licensed by the Virginia Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, Board for 
Contractors, to perform all Work included in the scope of the Contract. 

      
 
Virginia License No.: ______________ Bidder:       
  (Name of Firm) 
 
Contractor Class:    By:       
      (Signature) 
 
Specialty:  Valid until:      
 
FEIN/SSN:   Title:       
 
 
If General Partnership (List Partners' Names) 
 
_________________________________ 
 
_________________________________ 
 
_________________________________ 
 
_________________________________ 
 

Business Address: 
 
____________________________________ 
 
____________________________________ 
 
____________________________________ 
 
____________________________________ 
 
Telephone # ________________________ 
 
FAX # _______________________________ 
 

If Corporation, affix Corporate Seal & 
list State of Incorporation 
 
State: _____________________________ 
 
(Affix Seal) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

8 
 

Virginia State Corporation Commission ID No.: ________________________; or 
 
If Contractor is a foreign business entity not required to be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth 
under Titles 13.1 or 50 of the Code of Virginia, or as otherwise required by law, please provide an explanation as 
to why such entity is not required to be so authorized:         
               
               
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Attachment “A” – Technical Proposal 
2. Attachment “B” – Cost Proposal  
3. Attachment “C”– Request for Proposal for Design-Build Services 




































































































































	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 4/6/20               6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 4/6/20         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Lebanon Elementary School RFP.pdf
	COUNTY OF RUSSELL VIRGINIA
	Request for Proposal for
	Design-Build Services
	IV. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION
	1. Three (3) copies of the Proposal (one marked original and two copies of the original) are to be submitted to the attention of the County Administrator at the address listed above.
	2. Proposals are to be submitted not later than the due date and time listed on the first page of this document.  Proposals received after the above time and date will be rejected and returned to the sender.
	3. Proposals are to be mailed via United States Postal Service, delivered via express delivery services or delivered by a representative of the Offeror to the address above.
	4. Proposals received by the Owner will remain in the possession of Owner and will not be returned to the Offerors.
	5. The Owner recognizes the possible existence of confidentiality agreements between an Offeror and previous clients and fully respects such agreements.  Any information requested by this RFP that is considered to be confidential between the Offeror a...
	6. The Owner’s Project personnel reserve the right to visit the office(s) of an Offeror to verify any claim(s) made by an Offeror regarding staff, facilities, capabilities, qualifications and any other reasonable concerns that may arise on the part of...
	7. The Owner will not be responsible for any costs incurred by an Offeror in the preparation and submittal of a Proposal.
	8. In the event the Offeror discovers an error in its Proposal after it has been submitted, attention may be drawn to the error in writing and an amendment to the Proposal submitted to the Owner, provided the amendment has been received by the Owner o...
	V. PROPOSALS EVALUATION PROCESS
	1. Proposals will be opened under the supervision of the County Administrator.  The opening of the Proposals will not be conducted in public.
	2. Upon receipt of the Proposals from the Offerors, proposals will be distributed to the respective participants on the Project’s Design-Build Evaluation.
	3. The Design-Build Evaluation will thoroughly review the Proposals and rank them according to the criteria contained herein and will invite those organizations whose Proposals most closely align with the requirements of the RFP to subsequent face-to-...
	VI. EVALUATION CRITERIA
	The Design-Build evaluation criteria for proposals include the following:
	b. Points shall be credited to technical proposals based upon a 100-point baseline as follows:

	VIII. ATTACHMENTS
	COUNTY OF RUSSELL VIRGINIA
	Form of Proposal for Design-Build Services

	Project:   Lebanon Elementary School’s Wall (West) Repair
	From:      (Insert Name and address of Design-Build Contractor)




